FINDLAY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

REGULAR SESSION JUNE 4, 2019 COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ROLL CALL of 2018-2019 Councilmembers

ACCEPTANCE/CHANGES TO PREVIOUS CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES:

e Acceptance or changes to the May 21, 2019 Public Hearing meeting minutes to rezone 731 West Sandusky Street via Ordinance No. 2019-029.
e Acceptance or changes to the May 21, 2019 Regular Session City Council meeting minutes.

ADD-ON/REPLACEMENT/REMOVAL FROM THE AGENDA: - none.
PROCLAMATIONS: - none.

RECOGNITION/RETIREMENT RESOLUTIONS:

RESOLUTION NO. 018-2019 (Jerrol Harsh retirement) requires one (1) reading first reading
A RESOLUTION COMMENDING JERROL HARSH FOR THE EXCELLENCE OF HER SERVICES TO THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

PETITIONS: - none.
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: - none.
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: - none.

REPORTS OF MUNICIPAL OFFICERS AND MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENTS:

Mayor Muryn — appointment to Parks and Recreation Board

Mayor Muryn is appointing Ben Taylor to the Parks and Recreation Board for the City of Findlay to fill the unexpired term of the late Mike
Slough. His term will expire December 31, 2021. Mr. Taylor has expressed a desire and willingness to serve the community in this capacity.
This appointment does not require confirmation by Council.

Mayor Muryn — appointment to Parks and Recreation Board; Civil Service Commission
Mayor Muryn is appointing Colin Earl to the Parks and Recreation Board for the City of Findlay to fill the unexpired term of Dave Trisel. His
term will expire December 2020.

Mayor Muryn is appointing Jeffrey Fort to the Civil Service Commission to fill the unexpired term of John Urbanski. His term will expire
December 31, 2021. Both Mr. Earl and Mr. Fort have expressed their desire and willingness to serve the community in this capacity.
These appointments do not require confirmation by Council.

Safety Director Schmelzer — insurance payment on Police cruiser
The City has received payment for the repair of a police cruiser from an accident from the insurance company in the amount of $654.52. It
has been deposited in the General Fund. Legislation to appropriate funds is requested. Ordinance No. 2019-041 was created.

FROM: General Fund (insurance proceeds) $ 654.52

TO: Police Department #21012000-other $654.52

Mayor Muryn — U.S. Conference of Mayors grant for Childhood Obesity Prevention Award Program
The City of Findlay was awarded a one hundred thousand dollar ($100,000) grant from the U.S. Conference of Mayors as part of its Childhood
Obesity Prevention Award program, in partnership with American Beverage Foundation for a Healthy America. The grant monies will be used
to increase access to physical activity for children and youth, by expanding the existing Keep Active . . . Keep Healthy program. The monies
have been received, and an appropriation is respectfully requested as follows:

FROM: USCM Childhood Obesity Prevention Grant $ 100,000.00

TO: Keep Active . . . Keep Healthy Program #31993600-other $ 100,000.00
Legislation to appropriate funds is requested. Ordinance No. 2019-042 was created.

Treasurer’s Reconciliation Report — April 2019.

City Planning Commission agenda — June 13 2019; minutes — May 9, 2019.

City Auditor Staschiak — Union contracts

New City union contracts were executed this year. The City Auditor’'s Office has maintained records on the contracts for many years.
Attached is a spreadsheet outlining all City employee benefits. It has been provided in the past, so this table includes the most recent
contracts.



City Auditor Staschiak — outstanding debt

City Auditor Staschiak provided various documentation on the status of the City of Findlay’s outstanding debt as of December 31, 2018. That
total amount is seventeen million two hundred sixty-one thousand dollars ($17,261,000.00). The City of Findlay does not borrow monies for
operating purposes. Outstanding debt generally represents financing for capital improvements. This report is not statutorily required, is
unaudited and simply intended to inform.

President of City Council R. Ronald Monday/President Pro-Tem of City Council Grant Russel
Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 718.11 (A)(2)(HB5), the legislative authority of any municipal corporation that imposes tax on income shall
maintain a local Board of Tax Review of which two (2) members shall be appointed by the legislative authority of that municipal corporation.

Council President Monday and Council President Pro-Tem Russel recommend Douglas Huffman and Roger Miller be appointed to continue
serving on this committee, retroactive to January 1, 2019. Both are practicing attorneys in Findlay and have indicated a willingness to serve.
This requires Council confirmation.

COMMITTEE REPORTS: - none.

LEGISLATION:

RESOLUTIONS:

RESOLUTION NO. 017-2019 (no PO) requires one (1) reading first reading
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURES MADE BY THE AUDITORS OFFICE ON THE ATTACHED LIST OF VOUCHERS
WHICH EITHER EXCEED THE PURCHASE ORDER OR WERE INCURRED WITHOUT A PURCHASE ORDER EXCEEDING THE
STATUTORY LIMIT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3000.00) ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH OHIO REVISED CODE 5705.41(D).

RESOLUTION NO. 018-2019 (Jerrol Harsh retirement) requires one (1) reading first reading
See page 1 (RECOGNITION/RETIREMENT RESOLUTIONS section).

ORDINANCES:

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-031 (sale of City-owned parking lot) requires three (3) readings third reading
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO TO ENTER INTO A REAL ESTATE PURCHASE
AGREEMENT WITH THE BLANCHARD VALLEY PORT AUTHORITY, AS WELL AS, THE 500 BLOCK WEST, LLC, FOR THE SALE OF A
CITY-OWNED PARKING LOT LOCATED AT IMMEDIATELY WEST OF 524 SOUTH MAIN STREET, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-033 (changes to zoning code) requires three (3) readings third reading
AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION 521.01(u), 521.04(b) and 521.07(a) AND ADDING NEW SECTION 521.10 OF CHAPTER 521 OF
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-035 (305 & 307 W Lincoln St rezone) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1100 ET SEQ OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, KNOWN AS
THE ZONING CODE BY REZONING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY (REFERRED TO AS 305 AND 307 WEST LINCOLN
STREET REZONE) WHICH PREVIOUSLY WAS ZONED “C2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL” TO “R4 DUPLEX/TRIPLEX RESIDENTIAL”.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-036 (Gardner alley vacation) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE VACATING A CERTAIN PORTION OF A CERTAIN ALLEY (HEREINAFTER REFERED TO AS GARDNER ALLEY
VACATION) IN THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-037 (533 Davis St rezone) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1100 ET SEQ OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, KNOWN AS
THE ZONING CODE BY REZONING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY (REFERRED TO AS 533 DAVIS STREET REZONE)
WHICH PREVIOUSLY WAS ZONED “R2 SINGLE FAMILY MEDIUM DENSITY” TO “R4 DUPLEX/TRIPLEX RESIDENTIAL”.

Agenda for June 4, 2019 City Council meeting Page 2



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-039 requires three (3) readings second reading
(MOU - Maumee Watershed Conservancy District, Hancock County Commissioners, and City of Findlay for continued flood mitigation efforts)

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE HANCOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-040 (Olive St waterline replacement (Main St to Fairmont Dr) requires three (3) readings first reading
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-041 (insurance payment on damaged PD cruiser) requires three (3) readings first reading
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-042 requires three (3) readings first reading
US Conference of Mayors grant — Childhood Obesity Prevention Award program)
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-043 (Howard Run ditch cleaning) requires three (3) readings first reading
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING AND TRANSFERRING FUNDS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
OLD BUSINESS
NEW BUSINESS

Agenda for June 4, 2019 City Council meeting Page 3



Office of the Mayor
Christina M. Muryn

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-424-7137 ¢ Fax: 419-424-7245
www.findlayohio.com

Paul E. Schmelzer, P.E,, P.S. Brian A. Thomas, P.E., P.S.
Safety Director Service Director
May 20, 2019

Honorable City Council

City of Findlay, Ohio
Dear Council Members:
This letter is to inform you of my appointment of the following individual to the respective Board:

Parks and Recreation Board

3 Year Term
Does not require Council confirmation
Ben Taylor

Filling unexpired term of Mike Slough.
Term will expire December 31, 2021

I trust that you will concur with my choices and confirm my appointments. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Christina M. Muryn
Mayor

Flag ci’cg, USA



Office of the Mayor
Christina M. Muryn

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-424-7137 * Fax: 419-424-7245
www.findlayohio.com

Paul E. Schmelzer, P.E., P.S. Brian A. Thomas, P.E, P.S.
Safety Director Service Director
May 29, 2019

Honorable City Council

City of Findlay, Ohio
Dear Council Members:

This letter will serve as my request for your confirmation of the following individuals to the respective Boards
or Commissions:

Parks and Recreation Board

Does not require Council confirmation

Filling unexpired term. Term will expire December 31, 2020
Colin Earl

Civil Service Commission

Does not require Council confirmation

Filling unexpired term. Term will expire December 31, 2021
Jeffrey Fort

I trust that you will concur with my choices and confirm my appointments. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

(s 11 o

Christina M. Muryn
Mayor

Flag citg, USA



Office of the Mayor
Lydia L. Mihalik

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-424-7137 ¢ Fax: 419-424-7245

Paul E. Schmelzer, P.E., P.S. Brian A. Thomas, P.E., P.S.
Safety Director Service Director
May 20, 2019

Honorable City Council

City of Findlay, Ohio
Dear Council Members:

The City has received payment for the repair of a police cruiser from an accident from the City’s
insurance company in the amount of $654.52. It has been deposited in the General Fund.

An appropriation is respectfully requested as follows:
FROM: General Fund (insurance proceeds) $654.52

TO: Police Department $654.52
21012000-other

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

/ 7
Padl E. Schmelzer #E., P.S.
Safety Director

cc: Donald J. Rasmussen, Director of Law
Jim Staschiak II, City Auditor
Chief John Dunbar, Police Department

Flag citg, USA



Office of the Mayor
Christina M. Muryn

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-424-7137 * Fax: 419-424-7245
www.findlayohio.com

Paul E. Schmelzer, P.E., P.S. Brian A. Thomas, P.E,, P.S.
Safety Director Service Director
May 22, 2019

Honorable City Council

City of Findlay, Ohio
Dear Honorable Council Members:

The City of Findlay was awarded a $100,000 grant from the U.S. Conference of Mayors as part
of its Childhood Obesity Prevention Award program, in partnership with American Beverage
Foundation for a Healthy America. The grant monies be will used to increase access to physical
activity for children and youth, by expanding the existing Keep Active...Keep Healthy program.
The monies have been received, and an appropriation is respectfully requested as follows:

FROM: USCM Childhood Obesity Prevention Grant $100,000.00

TO: Keep Active...Keep Healthy Program $100,000.00
31993600-other

By copy of this letter, I am requesting the Director of Law to prepare the necessary legislation
for authorization of this request.

We are excited to have been chosen for this opportunity with U.S. Conference of Mayors and
look forward to enhancing and expanding the Keep Active...Keep Healthy Program to create a
healthier lifestyles for our youth.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Christina M. Muryn W
Mayor

cc: Donald J. Rasmussen, Director of Law
Jim Staschiak II, City Auditor
Recreation Department

Flag City, usA



SUSAN JO HITE
CITY TREASURER

TREASURER'’S OFFICE

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 313
Findlay, OH 45840-3346
Telephone: 419-424-7107 o Fax: 419-424-7866
www.findlayohio.com

Treasurer's Reconciliation for April 30, 2019

TREASURER

Fifth Third Initial Balance
- Withdrawals ()
+ Deposits

Ending Balance

- Outstanding checks ()
Deposit in Transit
Bank Error

Treasurer's Checking Balance

Investment Principal

Treasurer's Total Cash
and Investments

Respectfully submitted,

Sus#n Jo Hite
Treasurer

Flag City, USA

3,504,693.54
(7,844,218.74)

8,908,526.01

4,569,000.81

(265,383.14)
1,876.50
0.20

4,305,494.37

56,926,271.67

61,231,766.04

AUDITOR

Auditor's Checking Balance

Auditor's Total Cash
and Investments

4,305,494.37

61,231,766.04

Our Spirit Shows




City of Findlay

City Planning Commission
City Council Chambers, 1** floor of Municipal Building
Thursday, June 13,2019 - 9:00 AM

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
SWEARING IN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

NEW ITEMS

1. PETITION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-05-2019 filed to rezone 606
Howard Street from O-1 Institutions and Offices to R-4 Duplex/Triplex. .

2. APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-13-2019 filed by OPM of Findlay,
1901 Tiffin Avenue, Findlay for an approximately 1580 square foot addition to The
Beverage Barn, 1901 Tiffin Avenue.

3. APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-14-2019 filed by AE & E Tree &
Landscape, 619 Lincolnshire Ln, Findlay for an 8428 square foot building and
parking lot to be located at 1766 S. Romick Pkwy., Findlay.

4. APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-15-2019 filed by Nickolas Asset
Management, PO Box 726, Findlay for a 5250 square foot storage building to be
located at 3640 Marathon Way, Findlay.

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS

ADJOURNMENT




City of Findlay
City Planning Commission

Thursday, May 9, 2019 — 9:00 AM

Minutes
(Staff Report Comments from the meeting are incorporated into the minutes in lighter text. Actual
minutes begin with the DISCUSSION Section for each item)

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Christina Muryn
Jackie Schroeder
Brian Thomas
Dan Clinger
Dan DeArment

STAFF ATTENDING: Matt Cordonnier, HRPC Director
Eric Adkins, City Zoning Inspector
Jeremy Kalb, Engineering Project Manager
Judy Scrimshaw, Development Services Planner

GUESTS: Jodi Mathias, Kyle Inbody, Leah Fox, Lizzy Hile, Bob
Gage, Ed Romatowski, Melissa Zuern, Jeff Kelley, Todd
Jenkins, Tom Shindledecker, Deric Luginbill, Jeremy
Smith, Craig Kidd, Josh Eberle, Lou Wilin, Mark Snyder,

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL
The following members were present:
Mayor Christina Muryn
Dan Clinger
Jackie Schroeder
Brian Thomas
Dan DeArment

Mayor Christina Muryn stated that item #CU-02-2019 has been pulled from the agenda but
welcomed all those in attendance for the item to stay if interested.

SWEARING IN
All those planning to give testimony were sworn in by Judy Scrimshaw.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Dan DeArment made a motion to approve the minutes of the April 11, 2019 meeting. Jackie
Schroeder seconded. Motion carried 5-0-0.

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



ITEMS TABLED AT THE APRIL 11, 2019 MEETING

1. ALLEY/STREET VACATION PETITION #AV-01-2019 filed to vacate an east/west
alley between 319 and 321 S. Main Street from S. Main Street east to the first north/south
alley.

Jackie Schroder made a motion to remove #AV-01-2019 from the table.
2M:  Dan DeArment

DISCUSSION

Jeremy Smith, finance director for Robin Gardner, said he had written documentation from James
Koehler regarding this issue. Mayor Muryn asked if he had a copy of the documentation. Mr.
Smith said he did and handed several copies to the Planning Commission.

Mr. Smith stated that Mr. Koehler and Ms. Gardner met yesterday with Beau Thompson, owner
of Greek Garden. Mr. Koehler owns the building, and Ms. Gardner owns the Hiatt Block — where
Awakening Minds Art, and Instrument Care is. Mr. Smith said they have mutual agreement for
the alley to be vacated. The plan is for Robin to put a stairwell on her side of the building, and for
Beau to continue outdoor seating for his restaurant, so differences were resolved yesterday. Mr.
Koehler approved his side as well via email. Mr. Smith said the last part is to work on the cross
easement on the back part.

Mr. DeArment said that when an alley is vacated, a part goes to each owner. Mr. DeArment asked
to clarify that the Gardners are going to continue to let Beau use the alley for outdoor seating. Mr.
Smith said yes. Mr. DeArment asked if that’s what the document said. Mr. Smith said yes. He
said once it’s vacated, it isn’t necessarily going to be 50/50 but they do have a zone map that is
outlaid to show what the parties have agreed to — where the stairwell will go and where tables can
be located. Mr. Smith said there will not be Main St. access to the Greek Garden most likely.
They will have to go through the restaurant to get back to that alley, but the stairwell for the Hiatt
Block will have Main St. access. Mr. DeArment asked if there would be a barricade. Mr. Smith
replied yes. Mr. DeArment asked if it would be see-through. Mr. Smith said it would be a picket-
type gate. Matt Cordonnier said that whatever structure/gate that they put up will have to be
approved by the Downtown Design Review Board. Mr. DeArment asked if the stairwell would
also have to be approved. Mr. Cordonnier stated that’s considered to be an addition and that it’s
already been approved by the Downtown Design Review Board. Mr. Smith said they already had
State approval for the stairwell as well. The primary purpose is for a fire escape but it will also be
used as a Main Street entrance for that building. Dan Clinger asked how close to the sidewalk
would the stairwell would be. Mr. Smith said it would be 6 feet wide off the building and the alley
is 16 feet, so it would be in off the alley about 8 to 10 feet from the sidewalk. It would not go right
up to the sidewalk though. Mr. Clinger asked if that would be a main access to the upper level.
Mr. Smith said it would be and there could be signage there as well which could go through the
Design Review Board also. Mr. DeArment asked who wanted the barricade off Main St. Mr.
Smith stated that it was mutually decided that they wanted that area to look as nice as possible and
at times, the area has not always looked presentable with trash, so Ms. Gardner said that if she’s
going to have a stairwell there, she wants the front area to look presentable. The main purpose of
the gate is to keep people from walking through there. Today, Mr. Thompson has his tables out

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



there and there’s plenty of pedestrian traffic just passing through — that’s what they’re trying to
avoid. They still want it to be accessible for the Greek Garden.

Matt Pickett said he thinks there’s a Fire Department connection in that alley close to where the
barricade would be. Mr. Smith said yes, and there’s currently a manhole covered up there as well
which may be what Mr. Pickett is referring to. Mr. Pickett said it’s a Fire Department connection
for the building where Greek Garden is that they’re referring to, so they would need access to that
general area. Mr. Smith said he would relay that to Mr. Thompson. Mr. Pickett said they would
work with them to ensure that they have access while making the area look presentable.

Matt Cordonnier said there is some desire to preserve the alleyways for pedestrian use. He said
the City could retain ownership of the alley and give them a permit to build in the right-of-way.
Mr. Cordonnier just wanted to share that there were other solutions to the issue but isn’t advocating
for one solution over the other. Brian Thomas said that they’ve given people revocable permits to
build in the right-of-way before but if this is a fire escape, he doesn’t see how we could make this
arevocable permit because they wouldn’t be able to revoke it. If it’s there by State code, we don’t
have the option to say we don’t want it there later. Mr. DeArment said that he believes the alley
needs some investment so if they own it, they might be more likely to invest in it. Mr. Clinger
asked Mr. Smith if there had been any discussions regarding the surface of the alley. Mr. Smith
said they had, and the next steps would be for Mr. Koehler to work with Phil Rooney to map the
alley out. There are no drawings yet, but he assured the Commission that it would look better than
it does currently, and both parties are committed to investing in that space. The Hiatt block will
look better with the stairwell added and they also intend to do some work to that wall. Mr. Koehler
is going to invest in that side as well. Mr. Clinger asked if the surface would fall to Ms. Gardner’s
responsibility in addition to Mr. Koehler’s. Mr. Smith asked if he was referring to the pavement
of the alley. Mr. Clinger said yes. Mr. Smith said they haven’t discussed that other than covering
up the manhole with a wooden landscaping thing, but they know that there are still some things
that need addressed. He said that where the stairwell sits will be different because there’s going
to be a structure there that encloses the fire escape.

Jackie Schroeder asked if there are public utilities in the alley that need to be maintained with an
easement as there is a manhole there. Jeremy Kalb said he’s not sure but they can look into that.

MOTION

Dan DeArment made a motion to recommend approval to Findlay City Council of
ALLEY/STREET VACATION PETITION #AV-01-2019 filed to vacate an east/west alley
between 319 and 321 S. Main Street from S. Main Street east to the first north/south alley.
2":;  Dan Clinger

VOTE: Yay (5) Nay (0) Abstain (0)

2. PETITION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-02-2019 filed to rezone 305 & 307 W.
Lincoln Street from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



Dan Clinger made a motion to remove #ZA-02-2019 from the table.
27d: Jackie Schroeder

DISCUSSION

Deric Luginbill said he spoke with the neighbors about a possible easement and he didn’t say yes
or no. He presented the option to him but didn’t get a clear answer on what the neighbor wants
to do. Mr. Luginbill said he would still like to rezone regardless and then he can come up with a
site plan. Mr. Clinger asked if Mr. Luginbill was going to continue to press his neighbor for an
answer. Mr. Luginbill said he would continue to work on that while continuing his planning. He
said he would prefer to go that way but if it doesn’t, he would need to come off of Lincoln St.
Mr. Clinger asked Judy Scrimshaw if there was a sketch or something presented. Ms.
Scrimshaw said there was and asked Mr. Luginbill to show his drawings. Mr. Cordonnier said
that because this is a duplex or triplex, there are access concerns as parking is already tight there
and if access goes through there, off street parking spaces would be removed. Mr. Clinger said
he thinks there would be some cost involved in redefining that parking spot a little bit so that he
could accommodate the existing tenant there. Mr. DeArment suggested some shared parking in
the next lot over. Mr. Luginbill showed the Commission his drawings to give them a visual of
what the project might look like. Mr. Clinger asked Engineering if they are limited to 12 foot
width on each property for the driveway. Mr. Cordonnier said the maximum width of a
driveway is 24 feet. He said there’s two lots and each lot would legally be entitled to a curb cut
because they have no other access. Mr. DeArment asked if what Mr. Luginbill is proposing is
acceptable in terms of curb cut width. Ms. Scrimshaw stated that the drawing is just conceptual.
Mr. Cordonnier said that as it stands now, there are two lots and he could come in and request
curb cuts and the City would legally have to give them to him. Mayor Muryn said she understood
the concern, but she is fine with changing the zoning because she feels it does meet the needs of
the property and there are other properties in that neighborhood with the front parking. She
asked that Mr. Luginbill continue to try and have discussions with the neighbor but she does feel
it is acceptable. Ms. Scrimshaw said she feels she misspoke during the last meeting about the
zoning. At the time, she said he’d probably have to rezone it even if it were a single-family
home, but she said now that he would not because it’s a nonconforming use now in the C-2 and
as long as he constructs another single family home there in the next two years, he doesn’t need
to change the zoning. So, you could put up a single family home there and he would have to get
a driveway there. Mr. Clinger asked Mr. Luginbill if he had considered that at all. Mr. Luginbill
said that wouldn’t work out for him financially. Mr. Clinger mentioned that there was discussion
during the last meeting about people walking on the sidewalk and there’s a large driveway across
there so he’s given some thought to whether it makes more sense to have one large driveway or
two smaller drives as to avoid having cars constantly back out of there. But, he feels it’s a toss-
up there as far as safety concerns. Mr. Luginbill said that even with two driveways, there likely
wouldn’t be a substantial distance between them. Mr. Thomas said he thinks the one lot is 25 feet
and the other is 27 feet. So, he could have a 24 foot wide curb cut on a 25 foot lot and a 24 foot
wide curb cut on a 26 foot lot, whereas this way, he could be limited to one 24 foot wide curb cut
for both lots. Mr. Thomas said he does understand the concern about traffic but they can’t put
conditions on a zoning request. He said it makes sense to rezone as it will clean up the
neighborhood, but if the hang up is the driveway, there will be less driveway if it’s rezoned and
he proceeds than if it’s left as is now. Mr. DeArment asked if it would meet the parking

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



requirement. The reply was yes.

Ed Romatowski, a neighbor at 315 W. Lincoln St., said he understood what Mr. Luginbill is
trying to do but has some concerns with parking out front on West Lincoln Street. Mr.
DeArment asked Mr. Romatowski what he thought about the concept Mr. Luginbill created for
the parking with two spots in the driveway and two in the garage. Mr. Romatowski asked how
far apart they would be. Mr. Romatowski asked what the setback is. Mr. Luginbill said he
doesn’t know but said it’s actually farther back. Mr. DeArment asked if there’s enough room
between the sidewalk and the garage to park a car without impeding the sidewalk. Mr. Luginbill
said yes. He said with his original sketch, they aren’t even meeting the rear setback yet either so
there’s still distance to move if needed. Mr. Romatowski asked about how far back the concrete
apron on the far side would go. Mr. Luginbill said he would go back 20 to 22 feet from the edge
of the driveway to the sidewalk going south that way the cars are off the sidewalk. Mr. Clinger
told Mr. Luginbill that not everyone pulls all the way forward when parking so he suggested
considering ample room between the sidewalk and the garage. He suggested 25 or more feet to
help with visibility. Mr. Romatowski asked if they have a 24 foot curb cut, if it would be
multiplied by two. Mr. Clinger and Ms. Scrimshaw said no. Ms. Scrimshaw said it would just
be one. Mr. Clinger said it would be 12 feet each. Mr. Romatowski said if they can figure out
the issue of parking, he’s on board. Mr. DeArment said this is the proposal. Mr. Romatowski
said he doesn’t want to come down Lincoln St. and see cars parked out front of the house. Mr.
Clinger said parking is not permitted on that side of the street, but it is on the other side. Erik
Adkins said the setbacks would be 10 feet and that he can’t have any required parking within that
10 feet so even to the house it’s another 18 feet for the parking, he’s looking at 28 feet before he
gets to a building so zoning will take care of the schematics of things and make sure he’ll follow
the setbacks. Mr. Romatowski said that helps and said that aesthetics are very important to the
downtown area. He just doesn’t want cars with their bumpers hanging over the sidewalk in that
24 feet of concrete. Mr. Adkins said that with the front property line, there’s 10 feet there for the
setback and he can’t have required parking in that space and he has to have two spots per unit so
he’ll have the garage and then another 18 feet for parking, and then another 10 feet to the
property line — a minimum 28 feet total. Ms. Schroeder added that this is if the conceptual
drawing happens, but asked if Mr. Luginbill still intended to work with the neighbor. Mr.
Luginbill said he is, and that the drawing is just a mock up from the front and if things work out
with the easement, he would go that route but he still doesn’t have a straight answer. Ms.
Schroeder said we have to provide an access regardless. Mr. Romatowski said he agrees, he has
to have access. Mr. DeArment said the preference is rear parking.

MOTION

Dan DeArment made a motion to recommend approval to Findlay City Council for PETITION
FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-02-2019 filed to rezone 305 & 307 W. Lincoln Street
from C-2 General Commercial to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

2":  Dan Clinger

VOTE: Yay (5) Nay (0) Abstain (0)

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



NEW ITEMS

1. PETITION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-04-2019 filed to rezone 533 Davis
Street from R-2 Single Family Medium Density to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

CPC STAFF

General Information

This request is located on the south side of Davis Street east of the intersection with Bolton
Street. It is zoned R-2 Single Family Medium Density. All surrounding properties are also
zoned R-2. Tt is not located within the 100-year flood plain. The City of Findlay Land Use Plan
designates the area as Single Family Small Lot.

Parcel History
None

Staff Analysis
The property is the site of an existing single-family home and large detached garage. The
applicant would like to convert the property into either a duplex or triplex.

There are two duplexes directly east of this property, 538 across the street is a duplex and 1123
Bolton around the corner is a duplex. Other properties abutting it may be single family but we
assume they are all rentals as the owners listed are either LLC’s or have out of town mailing
addresses.

In December 2017 we rezoned 3 lots in the 600 block to R-4 for the new owner to build new
duplex units. This neighborhood has a history of conversions due to the proximity to the
University.

The owner will have to comply with parking requirements of the zoning code in order to
determine if he can do two or three units.

Staff Recommendation

CPC Staff recommends that FCPC recommend approval to Findlay City Council of PETITION
FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #Z.A-04-2019 filed to rezone 533 Davis Street from R-2
Single Family Medium Density to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

ENGINEERING
No comment.

FIRE PREVENTION
No comment.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that FCPC recommend approval to Findlay City Council of PETITION FOR
ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-04-2019 filed to rezone 533 Davis Street from R-2 Single

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



Family Medium Density to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

DISCUSSION

Levi Schlumbohm said that it won’t increase any traffic. Mr. Clinger asked Mr. Cordonnier if this
is one of the areas that zoning might be changed to be more accurate. Mr. Cordonnier said it is
zoned R-2 like most of the smaller lots and with the zoning map update, this would be converted
to R-3 because of the lot size. He said if he’s asking if all the duplexes will be zoned R-4, this area
won’t be zoned R-4 overall — there’s different solutions being looked at to accommodate the
duplexes there but the only change expected is from R-2 to R-3 due to lot size. Mr. Schlumbohm
asked if he could still put in a triplex if desired. Ms. Scrimshaw said R-4 would allow him to do
that. He would just have to prove he can provide all the parking.

Mark Snyder, the owner of the duplexes to the east, just wanted to see what was going on with this
project. He said this property has been an eyesore for a while and is glad to see this being taken
care of.

Mr. Clinger asked if he was considering demolition. Mr. Schlumbohm said he would like to use
the existing footprint there and it does have a drive on either side so that would be more convenient
for him, but he’s not sure yet. He said the foundation itself is solid but the house needs gutted.
Mr. DeArment asked if he was intending to keep the driveway with parking in the rear. Mr.
Schlumbohm said yes, if they eliminate the garage in the rear, that’s all concrete so that adds to
parking. Ms. Scrimshaw said he also has alley access in the back which adds to parking if needed.
Mayor Muryn suggested Mr. Schlumbohm be sworn in since he arrived after the meeting began.
Mr. Schlumbohm said he’d like to build a triplex extending to the south a bit. Mr. Schlumbohm
asked Mr. Snyder if he had a duplex. Mr. Snyder said yes. Mr. Schlumbohm said his footprint is
almost the same as his, but this would go to the south and add another unit, so there’d be plenty of
parking on that back part. Mr. Snyder asked if there would be a parking lot in the back. Mr.
Schlumbohm said yes. He said they’ve done something similar on N. Cory St. with the townhouses
but he doesn’t have pictures with him. He said it’s cheaper to build up than out. Mr. Snyder asked
if this would be similar to what was built on the 600 block. Mr. Schlumbohm asked if that was to
the west. Mr. Snyder said yes. Mr. Schlumbohm said no, those are more split like that of the
earlier item on Lincoln St. He said it would probably be facing Mr. Snyder’s properties.

Mr. Clinger asked Mr. Cordonnier if the fifty percent lot coverage on R-4 applied to the building
structure or lot pavement. Ms. Scrimshaw said that applies to roofed areas. Mr. Cordonnier said
for multi-family, M-1 and M-2, that’s for paved area, so it fluctuates between roofed area and
paved area.

MOTION

Mayor Muryn made a motion to recommend approval to Findlay City Council of PETITION
FOR ZONING AMENDMENT #ZA-04-2019 filed to rezone 533 Davis Street from R-2
Single Family Medium Density to R-4 Duplex/Triplex.

20d:  Dan Clinger

VOTE: Yay (5) Nay (0) Abstain (0)

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



2. APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-09-2019 filed by Findlay DHOP, LLC
9010 Overlook Blvd, Brentwood, TN for a 9,026 square foot Dollar General store to be
located at 2050 W. Main Cross Street in Liberty Township.

CPC STAFF

General Information

This request 1s located on the north side of W. Main Cross Street east of the intersection of CR
140. It is located in Liberty Township and is zoned B-2 General Business. Land to the north and
west is also zoned B-3. To the south is zoned R-2 One Family. To the east is zoned RM-1
Multiple Family. It is not located within the 100-year flood plain. The Liberty Township Land
Use map designates it as Business.

Parcel History
This is currently a vacant parcel.

Staff Analysis

The applicant would like to construct a 9,026 square foot retail building on a 1.158 acre parcel.
One access point is shown at the east side of the development. This will have to be approved by
ODOT because this is a State route.

All setbacks for the building appear to comply with the Liberty Township code. The City does
not issue any permits for the actual structure and site plan. Those will be up to the Township.

Staff did offer some suggestions to the Township for their review of the plan. The main concern
is that this is being located abutting a residential strip of development. We would want to try to
protect those residential uses as much as possible. The Township’s code has very little on
screening standards. We suggested privacy fencing on the east side and forwarded on the
photometric plan that we received.

A pylon sign is proposed and Staff recommended a low profile. There is no real landscaping
shown. Anything that is not pavement is listed as grass. We offered suggestions to landscape in
front of the parking lot, around the sign and just generally add a few trees and shrubs on the site
to break up the boring, flat view.

Staff Recommendation

CPC Staff recommends approval of APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-09-
2019 for a 9,026 square foot Dollar General store to be located at 2050 W, Main Cross
Street in Liberty Township.

ENGINEERING
Access —
A new three lane drive will come off of State Route 12.

Sanitary Sewer —
The developer will be installing a new sanitary mainline from the existing sanitary sewer located
to the east. Looking at the proposed plans, the sanitary sewer will need to be extended to the far

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



west property line. Sanitary No. 3 needs to be shifted to the west, to get it out from under the

Overhead Power Lines. The installation of the new mainline along SR12 will be inspected by
the City of Findlay; this portion of the project will be set up as a “To Be Reimbursed (TBR)”

project.

Waterline
The plans are proposing a well for the site.

Stormwater Management —
Detention for the site will be achieved by an onsite detention pond. Even though the site is
outside City Limits, the City of Findlay will still need a copy of the detention calculations.

MS4 Requirements
Site is outside City Limits

Recommendations:
o Conditional Approval of the Site Plan
o Extend the Sanitary Sewer to the west property line.
o Move Sanitary Sewer No. 3 to the west, to get it out from under the OHE.

Following Permits are needed before Construction Can Start:

Sanitary Sewer Mainline Tap- 1 total
Sanitary Sewer Lateral- 1 total
FIRE PREVENTION

No Comments from FFD and no additional comments from Liberty Twp. FD.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-09-2019
for a 9,026 square foot Dollar General store to be located at 2050 W. Main Cross Street in
Liberty Township subject to the following:

e Provide a copy of the detention calculations to the City Engineer’s office.
Extending the sanitary sewer to the west property line

DISCUSSION

Bob Gage, the developer for the project, said everything said earlier is correct except for one item.
The fence will be pulled 5 feet off the property line on the east side — that neighbor was at the
meeting and requested that. They are intending to put up a 6 foot privacy fence. The one on the
west side is going to stay as shown, but the one on the east side will be pulled back five feet. They
did also agree to extend the fence to 230 feet. The idea was to extend that all the way up to the
northern property line to screen the detention facility as the neighbor to the east does have small
children. But everything else has been agreed to. They have agreed to put shrubs along the
southern side of the parking lot facing Main Cross Street to block headlights. They are also putting
up an 8 foot tall monument sign roughly where the sign is shown. They are going to have to move
it west a little bit by 5 or 10 feet. Other than that, they agree to everything else stated and they are

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



10

looking forward to getting started.

Mr. Kalb asked that the sanitary line be moved to the west out from under the power lines and then
that line needs to be extended all the way to the west property line per their rotary. He said he
believes he emailed someone from Mr. Gage’s office about that previously. He also a requested a
copy of the detention calculations in case it ever does get annexed into the City.

Mr. Pickett said he already spoke with Liberty Township Fire Department and they had no
additional comments.

Mayor Muryn said she isn’t thrilled with the overall appearance of this building but understands it
is budget-friendly facility and asked that it be made to look as nice as possible as to blend with the
rest of the community.

Mr. Clinger asked if they were using a pylon sign. Mr. Gage said they are not. They originally
were going to use a pylon but it was requested that they use a monument sign instead. Mr. Clinger
asked if the sign would be 8 feet wide. Mr. Gage said it would be 8 feet tall. Ms. Scrimshaw said
it can be a maximum of 8 feet tall. Mr. Clinger asked how far they would be bringing the fencing
up to the property line in the front. Mr. Gage said they typically go just past the front edge of the
building but not far enough that it would block any visibility so on the west side it would be a little
bit further down to the southern edge of the parking spaces. On the east side, they’ll bring it out
to the back side of the south side of those end parking spaces by the front. It’ll be an 8 foot tall
privacy fence. Mr. Clinger asked if there’d be planting on the outside of that. Mr. Gage said on
the east side there would be. The plan shown there shows it on the property line but after the
meeting Tuesday night, they agreed to move it 5 feet toward the inside of their lot and then plant
trees along the eastern property line to try and spruce it up for the neighbor who closely resides.
Mr. Clinger asked if he was pulling the fence to the west a bit. Mr. Gage said that’s correct. Ms.
Scrimshaw said the other side would just be the fence but there is a house there owned by Findlay
Cartage which might be torn down. Mr. Gage agreed.

Mr. Clinger said as he was looking at this, he was a little confused by the red line shown there.
Ms. Scrimshaw said it’s not quite right — where the line is shown going up is where the property
is going to end up being. Mr. Clinger asked about the north red line. Ms. Scrimshaw said there’s
technically another little parcel there but the map is incorrect but those two little pieces are
definitely going to them and some might be added on the north end as well. Mr. Gage said they
initially thought they were a different zone but after looking back, they realized it was zoned the
same. Mr. Clinger said it’s noted that there’s a 10 foot utility easement along there. Mr. Gage
said there is a utility easement along that line — a gas utility line. They are working with the gas
company to get that moved to either the front or back of the lot.

Craig Kidd, an owner of several houses surrounding the property, mentioned that every house in
that area has been hit by a car at some time because of the curves. He believes the Dollar General
will block the view even further. Mr. Kidd said a neighbor has moved his house back because it
was hit four times in one year. The house that is going to be tore down has also been hit four
times. The houses Mr. Kidd owns have also been hit because of the curves there. He said that 200
feet south of there is a major flooding issue because of the housing development there. So, the

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



11

Dollar General is going to put more water there and contribute to an already bad situation. There’s
no water or sewer there and now a sewer is going to be put there. Mr. Kidd said that by law, people
must tie into a sewer if they are within 200 feet. So, are they going to make people who couldn’t
get access to water and sewer before tie in? Mr. Clinger asked if the other side is in the City. Ms.
Scrimshaw said no, it’s all in the township. Mr. Kidd said he thinks there’s eleven houses there
that don’t have city water or sewer. He said that now if they do run sewer there, people must tie
in. Mr. Kidd said he knows because he owns a septic business.

Mr. Kidd stated that those people have spent thousands of dollars fixing their septic systems
because they couldn’t get sewer there before. Mr. Clinger asked where the sewer ends at this point.
Mr. Kalb said it’s down by Thimbleberry. Mr. Clinger asked if this project would extend the sewer
from there. Ms. Scrimshaw and Mr. Kalb said yes. Mr. Gage said they would prefer to have a
septic system rather than extending as that would be cheaper for them. They have done a perc test
on the property to see if they could build a septic system. Mr. Kidd said they need two acres to do
that. He said he doesn’t understand how they can make everyone tie into that. Ms. Scrimshaw
said that’s up to the County Health Department and she’s not sure if they will or not. Ms.
Scrimshaw asked Mr. Kidd if he spoke with the township about his concerns. Mr. Kidd said he
did and has a meeting with them today. Ms. Scrimshaw said the only thing we have control over
is whether we give them a sewer line. Mr. Kidd said he spoke with Jeff Schimmoeller and told
him about the traffic. He said he’s concerned about one of the kids in the houses he owns getting
hit by a car. He guarantees the Dollar General will cause an accident. Mr. Gage said the Dollar
General is not adding to traffic. Mr. Kidd asked why they are adding a store if there isn’t going to
be any additional traffic there. Ms. Scrimshaw asked if he had received approval for the curb cut
from ODOT. Mr. Gage said it’s being reviewed now and preliminarily there are no issues.

Mr. Kidd said that 2015 West Main Cross Street is right across from the proposed Dollar General,
then there’s a field, and then his houses start. His first house, at 2101, has a U shaped driveway.
Matt Hobart who owned 2015 W. Main Cross, wanted to buy one of those driveways to add an
easement to her field because she has no access to her field and the State would not give her an
easement to get into her field so she has to use his driveway to get into the field. He said ten years
ago, no more driveways were allowed to be put in there between CR 140 and 1 75. Mr. DeArment
said he’s not sure how that issue ties into this project. Mr. Kidd said he has a lot of money invested
here. Mr. DeArment said there a lot of issues beyond the scope of this meeting — the curve in the
road, etc. He said we are sympathetic to the issues but cannot control those issues.

Mr. Clinger asked where the detention pond releases to. Mr. Gage said originally is was designed
to have a spreader drain across the back toward the north side of the property but the township and
county engineering has requested to have that tied into a drainage tile so that’s what they are doing.
They know the neighbor to the east has one in his driveway that runs west. They are searching for
the tile. He also knows there was a new storm drain built west of the house built west of the
property so they are trying to find that to tie into. Mr. Clinger asked if Mr. Gage was just referring
to a county field tile. Mr. Gage said yes. Mr. Clinger asked if he knew what size. Mr. Gage said
they’ve been searching and can’t find anything. Mr. Thomas mentioned that the one put in by the
county a year or two ago runs over to CR 140 and is a big tile — a 24 or 30 inch tile, so it’s not a
small one a farmer put in. Mr. Gage asked exactly where it was located. Mr. Thomas said he
should be able to see it when he gets out there since grass hasn’t grown over it. Mr. Gage said he

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



12

was out there last night and found the one to the east but hasn’t found the other one yet. He said
he’d continue to search. He said anything coming from the detention facility would come out of
that tile. Ms. Scrimshaw said the County would have to approve his drainage.

Mayor Muryn asked if it made more sense to change the condition on the approval to say
something about encouraging the County to give them the septic approval. Mr. Thomas said our
requirements are always extended to the far property line so if the neighbor needs it, it’s at his
closest property line and he doesn’t have to go across the othér property to get it. The City has
followed this for years. Mr. DeArment mentioned Mr. Kidd’s concern about the cost of having to
abandon their septic tanks to go into the sanitary sewer. He said he would imagine the most
expensive part is getting under Main Cross with that sewer, so how would the Commission feel
about the Dollar General having to bring it under Main Cross and then everyone could tie in
relatively inexpensively to the sewer. Mr. Thomas said if that’s required, they could also get grants
from the Health Department to do so but he doesn’t think it would be fair for Dollar General to
have to do that. Mr. Gage mentioned that there is an alternative. Sometimes they have done types
of force mains. Their use is less than a 3-bedroom house. If he could get approval to do a 2” force
main to the existing location of the sewer, none of these homes would have to connect. Ms.
Scrimshaw said she thinks EPA has to approve this project since it is commercial. Mr. Thomas
said yes, unless their septic system is failing and then there won’t be anything for them to tie into.
Mr. Gage said that from his understanding, when he spoke to the neighbor to the east, he said he’s
been there for 8 years and hasn’t had any issues at all thus far. But, he would still like to go back
out there and punch some more holes in the ground to see if they can put a septic system there if
possible. He said he knows they typically make two or three holes and analyze the soil, but it came
back and had failed the first time they did it. Mr. Gage said he would like to go back out there and
investigate further. Mr. Clinger asked if he would not need to have more property in order to do
that. Mr. Gage said he would potentially have to have a variance for the size. He noted that there’s
a bit more farm land back there that they might be able to purchase, but those are things he has yet
to look into. Mr. Clinger said he thinks he’d have to have a leech field. Mr. Gage said he would.
Ms. Scrimshaw said she isn’t sure on commercial property — she knows the Board of Health only
deals with the residential and the two acres but she doesn’t know what the EPA does as far as a
commercial property. Ms. Scrimshaw asked Mr. Gage if he had to have the two acres. Mr. Gage
said no — typically their sites run an acre and a half. Ms. Scrimshaw said she was wondering if
their requirements were different. Mr. Gage said there are various types of septic systems.

Mr. Clinger asked if most deliveries would be made by tractor trailer. Mr. Gage said there’s one
that delivers a week. It is a 75-foot long tractor trailer. The site has been designed to accommodate
all of the movements of this vehicle. It’ll come around the front of the store to go to the back to
the northeast comer of the building. The loading doors are not like a truck wells, but has rolling
racks. They’re typically on site from 45 minutes to an hour. Mr. Clinger asked if that occurred
during off hours. Mr. Gage said they generally try to arrive before the store opens on Monday
mornings. But the site is designed to have a car in every spot and the truck still be able to move
through regardless. They widened the drives to 24 feet, 30 on another, and 36 on the east side
making it large enough for the trucks to move through without hitting landscaping, cars, or going
off the pavement.

Mr. Clinger said he understood the neighbor’s concerns about cars hitting houses but they have no
knowledge of the circumstances under which this occurred. Mr. Gage said he spoke with a

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



13

neighbor across the street who said he’s had cars in his front yard but typically that’s when there’s
ice on the road or bad weather, but it’s not an everyday thing. Mr. Cordonnier said it might actually
have a traffic calming effect as you’d have people coming and going rather than it being just a
straight shot. The movement in and out would make people slow down. Mr. Gage said he believes
the speed limit is 45 right in front of the store. He stated that sight lines are great. He reiterated
that these stores do not generate traffic. They are not destination locations and monopolize on
existing traffic through the area — the reason they wanted to be located at this spot. There are
10,000 cars a day that will drive by this store. Typically, the stores receive about 10 cars per hour.
It’s low-volume but consistent. They don’t generate traffic, they catch it.

MOTION
Dan Clinger made a motion to approve APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-09-
2019 for a 9,026 square foot Dollar General store to be located at 2050 W. Main Cross
Street in Liberty Township subject to:

e Providing a copy of the detention calculations to the City Engineer’s office.

e Extending the sanitary sewer to the west property line

¢ Move the manhole from under the power line.

2"d:  Dan DeArment

VOTE: Yay (5) Nay (0) Abstain (0)

3. APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-10-2019 filed by Werk-Brau, 2800
Fostoria Avenue, Findlay for a proposed 82,560 square foot manufacturing facility to be
located at 2800 Fostoria Avenue, Findlay.

CPC STAFF

General Information

This request is located on the north side of Fostoria Avenue. It is zoned I-1 Light Industrial.
Land to the north, east and west is also zoned I-1. To the south is zoned MH Mobil Home. It is
not located within the 100-year flood plain. The City of Findlay Land Use Plan designates the
area as Industrial.

Parcel History
A plat combining parcels and vacating an easement area was approved at the April Planning

Commission meeting,

Staff Analysis
The applicant is proposing to construct an 82,560 square foot industrial building.

All setback requirements for the I-1 zoning are met. Parking for an industrial operation requires
1.1 spaces per employee on largest shift. The plans state that there will be 35 employees which

calculates to 39 spaces. The parking lot shows more than 80 spaces.

There are no landscaping or screening requirements for an industrial building abutting industrial.

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



14

There is not any new signage or new access proposed for the site. Elevation drawings show a
maximum height of 30°-9”. This is well below the maximum permitted of 60°.

Staff Recommendation

CPC Staff recommends approval of APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-10-
2019 filed by Werk-Brau, 2800 Fostoria Avenue, Findlay for a proposed 82,560 square foot
manufacturing facility to be located at 2800 Fostoria Avenue, Findlay.

ENGINEERING
Access —
Will be from the existing parking lot and drive.

Sanitary Sewer —
The plans are proposing a 6-inch lateral to be extended to the proposed building.

Waterline

A new 8-inch waterline will be extended from the 20-inch WL on Fostoria Ave., the existing 20-
inch waterline is pre-stressed concrete pipe. The new waterline will be looped over the existing
8-inch waterline that is already on site. Along with the new mainline the plans are proposing the
installation of two hydrants, relocating one existing hydrant, a fire line, and domestic waterline.
The City will need to know the sizing of the fire line and the domestic waterline.

Stormwater Management —

Detention calculations have been submitted with the plans. The plans are proposing a new
detention pond to be located on the North side of the proposed building and a second pond
located on the SE side of the proposed building. The detention pond will be metered into the
existing surge pond.

MS4 Requirements —
The amount of erodible material that will be disturbed will be more than one acre so the site is

will be required to comply with the City of Findlay’s Erosion & Sediment Control Ordinance.

Recommendations:
e Approval of the Site Plan

Following Permits are Needed Before Construction Can Start:

¢ Sanitary Sewer Tap- 1 total
e Waterline Tap- 5 total
o 8-inch Mainline Tap- 2 total
o Fire Line Tap- 1 total
o 6-inch Fire Hydrant Tap- 1 total
o Domestic Tap- 1 total
FIRE PREVENTION

City Planning Comrmission Minutes May 9, 2019



15

e Proposed water line and hydrants are sufficient with FFD
e Apply for all necessary permits with Wood County Building Department

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW #SP-10-2019
filed by Werk-Brau for a proposed 82,560 square foot manufacturing facility to be located
at 2800 Fostoria Avenue, Findlay.

DISCUSSION

Todd Jenkins said that initially they showed a waterline. They met with Wood County and they
aren’t going to require fire suppression so when they submitted it after the review, they are going
to remove that loop and then sit down with Mr. Pickett and Mr. Kalb to work out the details.

Ms. Schroeder asked if for detention they’re just looking at the swale north of the building going
into the existing pond. Mr. Jenkins said yes, there’s enough detention volume in the basin for City
regulations and the swale to the north takes care of Ohio EPA requirements.

Mr. DeArment asked what is being manufactured in the building. Mr. Jenkins said they make
excavating buckets and teeth. Mr. DeArment asked if this is just an extension of the current
business. Mr. Jenkins said yes, they eventually intend to put all manufacturing into this facility.
Mr. Clinger asked if the pond has been expanded. Mr. Jenkins said not at this time. Mr. Clinger
noted that there are some dashed lines shown in the plan. Mr. Jenkins said those are existing
contours. Mr. Clinger asked if this was referred to as a surge pond and asked the difference
between a surge pond and a detention pond. Mr. Jenkins said it was called a surge pond when it
was constructed back in the ‘80s and it was just left as that.

Mr. Clinger asked if they were picking up the drainage of the expanded parking lot and lay down
area with the swale continued around. Mr. Jenkins said those are being collected by catch basins
— the parking lot slopes to the catch basins in the center and then it’s being piped around to the
swale to the north. Mr. Clinger asked if the swale in the parking lot that was expanded is going
out and continuing to be a swale in the pavement. Mr. Jenkins said no, that all slopes to catch
basin number four. Mr. Clinger asked if the swale there would all be pavement. Mr. Jenkins said
yes.

Mr. Clinger asked how truck traffic would be handled and if it would all come in from the west
side. Mr. Jenkins said yes — he’s trying to get all of the trucks removed from his existing property.
He’s got a lot of cars and trucks coming in from the same entrance so he’s going to redirect the
traffic to the west entrance and then internally everything is going to be taken by lift. Mr. Clinger
asked if a truck dock was shown with drainage in it on the west side. Mr. Jenkins said yes.

MOTION

Dan Clinger made a to recommend approval of APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW
#SP-10-2019 filed by Werk-Brau, 2800 Fostoria Avenue, Findlay for a proposed 82,560
square foot manufacturing facility.

2mM:  Jackie Schroeder

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



16

VOTE: Yay (5) Nay (0) Abstain (0)

ADJOURNMENT

Christina Muryn Brian Thomas, P.E., P.S.
Mayor Service Director

City Planning Commission Minutes May 9, 2019



AUDITOR’S OFFICE

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 313
Findlay, OH 45840-3346
Telephone: 419-424-7101 * Fax: 419-424-7866
www.findlayohio.com

JIM STASCHIAK I
CITY AUDITOR

Wednesday, May 29, 2019

The Honorable Council
Findlay, Ohio

Dear Council Members,
It is respectfully requested this letter be read into the Council meeting record.

You are all aware new contracts were executed with the City’s unions this year. My office keeps
records covering many years of these contracts. Due to variations across the bargaining units, |
thought a document would be helpful to assist in understanding of the benefits across the employee
base. This information has been provided in the past, it has simply been updated with the most recent
contracts in effect. Therefore, | have attached an updated ‘Comparison of Benefits’ table.

Additionally, information regarding the progression of these benefits could be made available upon
request.

Respectfully,

=2

;/, , & e L e
Jim Staschiak Il

City Auditor



COMPARISON OF BENEFITS

2019

5/15/2019

BENEFIT

FIRE

POLICE

ALL OTHERS

Employer Pension Contribution

24% of employee gross

19.5% of employee gross

14% of employee gross

Employer Paid Life Insurance

$100,000 Basic Life & $100,000 AD&D, City's
cost is $15.50 per person per month

Wage Increase  2019-2021

2,367, annual calculation related to Income
tax receipts for '20 and '21

$100,000 Basic Life & $100,000 AD&D,
City's cost is $15.50 per person per month

$50,000 Basic Life & $50,000 AD&D, City's
cost is $7.75 per month per person

2,360, annual calculation related 1o Income
tax receipts for '20 and '21

2.36%, none determined yet for '20 and '21

Sick Sellbacks

After 20 years, up to 1000 hours annually at
1/2 regular rate

None

None

Sick Retirement Settlements

25% of First 960, 50% of remaining balance or
if over 1920, half of everything, if hired after
August 2013, 240 hours is maximum pay-out

25% of First 960, 50% of remaining balance
or if over 1920, half of everything, if hired
after August 2013, 240 hours is maximum

pay-out

25% of First 960, 50% of remaining balance or
if over 1920, half of everything, if hired after
August 2003, 240 hours is maximum pay-out

Sick Accrual Amounts

5.796 each pay period, none accrued on

4.6 hours per pay period and accrued on

4.6 hours per pay period, and accrued on

overtime overtime overtime
Vacation/Holivac Retirement 1520 Hours All accrued hours, allowed 3 years on All accrued hours, allowed 2 years on
Settlements anniversary date anniversary date
Days eligible for Holiday Premium Pay 11 11, 5 are double pay instead of 1 1/2 pay 11
. . After 20 years, up to 312 hrs per yr. All
Holivac/Vacation Sellbacks others, 96 hrs per yr Up to 80 hours per year None
Vacation Accrual Limits 3 years or more with specifications 3 Years 2 Years

Longevity Rates

$60 - $120 Biweekly after 10 years

$0.90 - $1.50 per hour ($72 to $120
biweekly) after 8 years

$30 to $90 Biweekly after 10 years

Overtime Calculations

Includes holiday pay, vacation pay and sick
pay.

Includes holiday pay, vacation pay and sick
pay.

Includes holiday pay and vacation pay.

Comp Payoff Settlements

Longevity included

Longevity included

Longevity NOT included

Comp Accrual Limits

180 Hours

160

120 Hours unless extended by Director

Comp Sellback

Can be used instead of holivac buy back

Up to 80 hours per year

None

Woaorking Out of Classification

1.17 per hour

Difference between the two wages rates

After 30 working days of continuous service in
the position. Difference between two hourly
wages

Educational Bonuses (Annually)

$250 - $1,250 Annually per qualifying person

$250 - $750 annually per qualifying person

None

License Stipends (Anuually)

None

None

$250 - $1,000 Annually for qualifying Water
and Sewer Employees Only

Uniform officers receive up to 5900 per year

Boots/Shoes $200 Annually None
- to use on uniforms and equipment, $600 -
Uniforms As Needed annually for dispatchers Shirts only
Clothing Allowance None $700 - 51400 for non-uniformed officers Up to $350 per year
750 A Wh
Fitness Stipend TR nnually.f?r Employee g None None
Qualifies
$0.50 for midnight to 8 a.m. and $0.75 for 4
.75 f idnight to 8 a.m. and $1.00 for 4
Shift Differential N/A S kil s l p.m. to midnight for water and sewer

p-m. to midnight for all officers

operators and operators' assistants




AUDITOR’S OFFICE

QL 318 Dorney Plaza, Room 313

SRS Findlay, OH 45840-3346

Telephone: 419-424-7101 e Fax: 419-424-7866
www.findlayohio.com

JIM STASCHIAK 11
CITY AUDITOR

Wednesday, May 29, 2019
Mr. Ron Monday

President of Council

Honorable Members of City Council

Dear President Monday, Members of Council,
It is respectfully requested this letter be read into the Council meeting record.
This report is part of a continuous effort to disclose the status of the outstanding debt for the City of
Findlay. As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding debt amounted to:
SEVENTEEN MILLION TWO HUNDRED SIXTY ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS
The City of Findlay does not borrow monies for operating purposes. Outstanding debt generally
represents financing for capital improvements.
This report, while not statutorily required, is unaudited and simply intended to inform. Please feel

welcome to call or contact me if you have any questions regarding its content.

Sincerely,

~ 4
. (

Jim Staschfgl(u ﬁ.
City Auditor



CITY OF FINDLAY - HANCOCK COUNTY OHIO

DEBT SUMMARY AS OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING 12/31/2018*

Redempti

Account Original Loan Principal on/ Call Maturity Interest
Number Amount Fund Date Description Outstanding Date Date Cost Type
23035000 $144,000 CIT-CI 12/31/04 CRYSTAL/MELROSE INTERSECTION $39,600 None 2024 0.0% OPWC
23065000 $149,663 CIT-CI 12/31/06 HOWARD STREET IMPROVEMENTS $56,124 None 2026 0.0% OPWC
23060110 $2,340,000 CIT-CI 08/20/16 HRC (CUBE) REHAB DEBT SERVICE $2,065,000 7/1/2026 2033 2.57% GO
23060210 $700,000 CIT-C1 08/20716 CR 236 LAND DEBT SERVICE $610,000 7/1/2026 2033 2.57% GO
23060310 $3,355,000 CIT-CI 08/20/16 CR 236 WIDENING DEBT SERVICE $3,110,000 7/1/2026 2028 2.57% GO
23056000 $518,006 CIT-CI 06/30/11 ENERGY SAVINGS PROGRAM BOND 'A’ §71,551 None 2019 2.96% GO
23056100 $518,005 CIT-CI 06/30/11 ENERGY SAVINGS PROGRAM BOND 'B' $518,005 None 2026 5.40% GO

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS (CIT-CI) $6,470,280
25052800 $2,000,000 WATER 04/03/14 WTP CLEARWELLS $410,000 None 2019 0.96% GO
25051000 $158,500 WATER 12/31/99 CENTER STREET WATERLINE $11,888 None 2020 0.0% OPWC
25051700 $30,598 WATER 12/31/01 1ST, 2ND, 3RD, ST. WATERLINE $5,355 None 2022 0.0% OPWC
25050200 $138,775 WATER 01/01/03 MAIN STREET WATERLINE $24,364 None 2022 0.0% OPWC
25050600 $200,000 WATER 12/31/03 SHERMAN PARK WATERLINE $50,000 None 2024 0.0% OPWC
25050800 $200,000 WATER 12/31/05 BROAD AVENUE WATERLINE $65,000 None 2025 0.0% OPWC
25050900 $193,590 WATER 08/06/08 W MELROSE WATERLINE $96,795 None 2028 0.0% OPWC
25050700 $184,859 WATER 07/16/08 CR 144 WATERLINE $101,672 None 2029 0.0% OPWC
25052600 $3,656,097 WATER 10/27/05 WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 81,927,673 None 2026 3.25% OWDA

TOTAL WATER $2,692,747
25061200 $1,350,000 WPC 04/03/14 BAR SCREENS $275,000 None 2019 0.96% GO
25060300 $32,470,000 WPC 01/01/02 2000 EPA LOAN DEBT SERVICE $6,818,391 None 2021 4.36% EPA, OWDA
25060200 $3,597,546 WPC 08/30/01 2001 EPA LOAN DEBT SERVICE $920,724 None 2023 1.73% EPA, OWDA

TOTAL WPC (SEWER) $8,014,615
28020000 $191,896 SPECIAL _ 09/10/12 2010 HUNTERS CREEK PROJ $83,000 None 2022 2.79% GO

TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS $83,000
Have stated for the record no plans to issue debt in near - future

TOTAL BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES $0

TOTAL DEBT OUTSTANDING $17,260,642

* Unaudited



$50,000,000

$45,000,000

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

S0

Total Outstanding Principal at Year End

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031
2032
2033




$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000

S0

Total Outstanding Fund Debt

Capital
Improvements,
$6,470,280

Water Fund,
$2,692,747

Total Fund Debt
Period Ending 12/31/18




$10,000,000
$9,000,000

$8,000,000

$7,000,000 °

$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

$0

Total Outstanding Fund Debt as of 12/31/2018

WPC (Sewer) Fund,

~ Special Assessment,

$8,014,615
Capital Stal '
Improvements,
$6,470,280
Water Fund, 5;. a
eS|
a __'I‘ | [l




Capital Improvement Restricted Account

Principal Outstanding 12/31/2015

$518,005

$71,551

$3,110,000

$39,600

$610,000

$56,124

$2,065,000

® CRYSTAL/MELROSE
INTERSECTION

# HOWARD STREET
IMPROVEMENTS

® HRC (CUBE) REHAB DEBT
SERVICE

M CR 236 LAND DEBT SERVICE

¥ CR 236 WIDENING DEBT SERVICE

&2 ENERGY SAVINGS PROGRA
BOND ‘A’ :

b4 ENERGY SAVINGS PROGRAM
BOND 'B'




Capital Improvement R.A. Debt Payments

700,000.00
* ENERGY BONDS SERIES A
600,000.00
® OPWC LOAN FOR
CRYSTAL/MELROSE
500.000.00 INTERSECTION
ENERGY BONDS SERIES B
400,000.00
™ OPWC LOAN FOR HOWARD
STREET IMPROVEMENTS
300,000.00
¥ 2016 REFUNDING CR 236
WIDENING
200,000.00
™ 2016 REFUNDING HRC REHAB
100,000.00
W 2016 REFUNDING CR 236
LAND

2031
2032
2033

=] o — o~ (2] <t n Y] M~ 0 N
g ¢ 8 § 8§ 8 8 § S 8 8
o~ o~ (o] ™~ o~ (o] ™~ o~ o~ o~ (o]




Water Fund Principal Outstanding

12/31/2018

$11,888

$410,000

$1,927,673

$101,672

$5,355
$24,364

$50,000

A $65,000

2 WTP CLEARWELLS

W CENTER STREET WATERLINE

W 1ST, 2ND, 3RD, ST. WATERLINE

B MAIN STREET WATERLINE

4 SHERMAN PARK WATERLINE

& BROAD AVENUE WATERLINE

EIW MELROSE WATERLINE

B CR 144 WATERLINE

W WATER TREATMENT PLANT
IMPROVEMENTS




Water Fund Debt Payments

800,000.00

%2014 WTP CLEARWELLS

700,000.00 |-

® OWDA LOAN - WATER
TREATMENT PLANT
IMPROVEMENTS

600,000.00 |-

™ OPWC LOAN FOR CR 144
WATERLINE

500,000.00 . - ® OPWC LOAN FOR WEST
’ MELROSE WATERLINE

- OPWC LOAN FOR BROAD
400,000.00 — AVENUE WATERLINE

* OPWC LOAN FOR SHERMAN

300,000.00 PARK WATERLINE

OPWC LOAN FOR MAIN STREET

200,000.00 WATERLINE

M OPWC LOAN FOR FIRST,

100,000.00 SECOND, THIRD STS WATERLINE

W OPWC LOAN FOR CENTER
STREET WATERLINE

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029




WPC (Sewer) Fund Principal Outstanding
12/31/2018

$275,000

P ‘.Ix. E.

$920,724

&4 BAR SCREENS

& 2000 EPA LOAN DEBT SERVICE

W 2001 EPA LOAN DEBT SERVICE

$6,818,891




WPC (Sewer) Fund Debt Payments

3,500,000.00

3,000,000.00

2,500,000.00

2014 BAR SCREENS

2,000,000.00

% EPA LOAN 2000
1,500,000.00

1,000,000.00 ® EPA LOAN 2001

500,000.00

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023




Special Assessment Principal Outstanding
12/31/2018

® 2010 HUNTERS CREEK PROJ




23,000.00 Special Assessment Debt Pavments

22,800.00

22,600.00 m 2012
HUNTERS

22,400.00 CREEK
DRAINAGE

22,200.00 ASSESSMENT

22,000.00

21,800.00

21,600.00

21,400.00

21,200.00

21,000.00

2019 2020 2021 2022




CITY OF FINDLAY OHIO

TIF SUMMARY - County Road 236 Land Acquisition and Improvements

OVERVIEW

The CR236 TIF district (tax increment financing) consisted of 4 TIF areas the first of which was
established in late 2003 and the last in 2005, Its purpose was to widen County Road 236 to five lanes
and to encourage a multi-purpose development on the east side of Findlay just north of State Route 224
and south of State Route 12. Council was first informed as to the financial implications of the TIF when
Council's Finance Committee made the recommendation in 2003 and the CEO of Prism Financial
Solutions spoke to City Council. Currently, due to lack of development, only 3 of the 4 TIF areas are
generating revenue. Since its creation the TIF district has failed to produce enough revenue to cover
the costs of the annual debt payments, incurred by the City of Findlay, the last of which being in July of
2033,

Developer/Owner: Various
Public Sector Partner: City of Findlay
Project Mix: Mixed and undetermined

Ordinances 2003-116, 2005-019, 2005-020 and 2005-021 established the districts

THE FINANCIAL RESULTS
Total County Road 236 TIF Principal : $4,055,000.00 Interest : $2,697,929.96
With the final payment being fn July 2033
2018 Payments Principal : $75,000.00 Interest : $105,348.00 |

Net Receipts (éxcluding VB schools) : $47,519.66

Difference (shortfall) paid by City of Findlay : ( $132,828.34 ) |

=

Difference (shortfall) ($1,462,522.64 )

Covered by City of Findlay since TIF inception to date

Updated 04/2019



CITY COUNCIL

Municipal Building, Room 114
318 Dorney Plaza

Findlay, OH 45840-3346
Telephone: 419-424-7113
Fax: 419-424-7245

May 24, 2019

Honorable City Council
Findlay, OH 45840

RE: Local Board of Tax Review

Dear fellow Councilmembers:

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 718.11 (A)(2)(HB5), the legislative
authority of any municipal corporation that imposes tax on income shall maintain a

local Board of Tax Review of which two (2) members shall be appointed by the
legislative authority of that municipal corporation.

We are recommending that Douglas Huffman and Roger Miller be appointed to
continue serving on this committee, retroactive to January 1, 2019. Both
gentlemen are practicing attorneys in Findlay and have indicated a willingness to
continue to serve in this capacity.

These appointments require confirmation by Council.
Respectfully,

LQ? O a%% 4% i 7/#(1//0,/ 21/9*@«-(

R. Ronald Monday Grant Russel
President of City Council President Pro-Tem of City Council

Flag city, USA



FINDLAY CITY COUNCIL
CARRY-OVER LEGISLATION
June 4, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-031 (sale of City-owned parking lof) requires three (3) readings third reading
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO TO ENTER INTO A REAL ESTATE PURCHASE
AGREEMENT WITH THE BLANCHARD VALLEY PORT AUTHORITY, AS WELL AS, THE 500 BLOCK WEST, LLC, FOR THE SALE OF A
CITY-OWNED PARKING LOT LOCATED AT IMMEDIATELY WEST OF 524 SOUTH MAIN STREET, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-033 (changes fo zoning code] requires three (3) readings third reading
AN ORDINANCE REPLACING SECTION 521.01(u), 521.04(b) and 521.07(a) AND ADDING NEW SECTION 521.10 OF CHAPTER 521 OF
THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-035 (305 & 307 W Lincoln St rezone) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1100 ET SEQ OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, KNOWN AS
THE ZONING CODE BY REZONING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY (REFERRED TO AS 305 AND 307 WEST LINCOLN
STREET REZONE) WHICH PREVIOUSLY WAS ZONED “C2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL” TO “R4 DUPLEX/TRIPLEX RESIDENTIAL".

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-036 (Gardner alley vacation) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE VACATING A CERTAIN PORTION OF A CERTAIN ALLEY (HEREINAFTER REFERED TO AS GARDNER ALLEY
VACATION) IN THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-037 (533 Davis St rezone) requires three (3) readings second reading
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1100 ET SEQ OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, KNOWN AS
THE ZONING CODE BY REZONING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY (REFERRED TO AS 533 DAVIS STREET REZONE)
WHICH PREVIOUSLY WAS ZONED “R2 SINGLE FAMILY MEDIUM DENSITY” TO “R4 DUPLEX/TRIPLEX RESIDENTIAL".

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-039 requires three (3) readings second reading
(MOU - Hancock County Commissioners and City of Findlay for continued flood mitigation efforts)

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE HANCOCK COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.



City of Findlay

Office of the Director of Law

318 Dorney Plaza, Room 310
Findlay, OH 45840
Telephone: 419-429-7338 « Fax: 419-424-7245

Donald J. Rasmussen
Director of Law

JUNE 4, 2019

THE FOLLOWING IS THE NEW LEGISLATION TO BE PRESENTED TO THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO, AT THE TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2019 MEETING.

RESOLUTIONS

017-2019 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURES MADE BY THE
AUDITORS OFFICE ON THE ATTACHED LIST OF VOUCHERS WHICH
EITHER EXCEED THE PURCHASE ORDER OR WERE INCURRED WITHOUT
A PURCHASE ORDER EXCEEDING THE STATUTORY LIMIT OF THREE
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3000.00) ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH OHIO
REVISED CODE 5705.41(D).

018-2019 A RESOLUTION COMMENDING JERROL HARSH FOR THE EXCELLENCE
OF HER SERVICES TO THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

ORDINANCES
2019-041 AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

2019-042 AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

2019-043 AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING AND TRANSFERRING FUNDS, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

Flag city, UsA



RESOLUTION NO. 017-2019

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURES MADE BY THE AUDITORS
OFFICE ON THE ATTACHED LIST OF VOUCHERS WHICH EITHER EXCEED THE
PURCHASE ORDER OR WERE INCURRED WITHOUT A PURCHASE ORDER
EXCEEDING THE STATUTORY LIMIT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3000.00)
ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH OHIO REVISED CODE 5705.41(D).

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code 5705.41(D) provides that if expenditures are incurred
by a municipality without a purchase order, within thirty (30) days, the municipality must
approve said expenditures.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Findlay, State of
Ohio:

SECTION 1: That the expenditures set forth on the attached list identified as “Exhibit A”
which are identified by the appropriate voucher on previously appropriated funds be and
the same are hereby approved, all in accordance with Ohio Revised Code 5705.41(D)

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period provided by law.

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

PASSED

ATTEST

CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED

CITY COUNCIL, FINDLAY, DHIO 45840



VENDOR VOUCHER ACCOUNT DEPARTMENT NAME AMOUNT REASON FOR EXPENSE WHY
VE E
WEBS;;EKD;G;&P[;VI ol NO PO IN PLACE. ORIGINAL
GRANICUS INC 1 2 - ERVICE 12,406. VENDOR B HT OUT BY
99858 1009000-441100 COMPUTER S CES 06.00 GOVACCESS STANDARD ENDOR BOUGHT O

EDITION

GRANICUS INC.




f

RESOLUTION NO. 018-2019

A RESOLUTION COMMENDING JERROL HARSH FOR THE EXCELLENCE OF HER
SERVICES TO THE CITY OF FINDLAY, OHIO.

WHEREAS, Jerrol Harsh, who served the City of Findlay, Ohio for twenty-five (25) years as
a dedicated loyal employee, retired effective May 10, 2019. Jerrol began her career with
the Findlay Municipal Court as a Deputy Clerk of Courts on July 8, 1993. She transferred
to the Water/Sewer Office as Utilities Billing Clerk | on January 10, 2000 and was then
promoted to Utilities Billing Clerk Il on January 14, 2007, a position she held until her
retirement, and;

WHEREAS, Jerrol received a certificate of appreciation for excellent public services on
November 6, 2015, and;

WHEREAS, during her twenty-five (25) years of service to the City of Findlay, Ohio, Jerrol
has performed as an outstanding public servant in a loyal and dedicated manner to the
citizens of the City of Findlay, Ohio through her responsibilities within the City of Findlay
Municipal Court and Water/Sewer Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Findlay, State of
Ohio:

SECTION 1: That the said Jerrol Harsh be and she is hereby commended for her long and
loyal services to her City, and that this Council extends its best wishes to her upon her
retirement from the City of Findlay, Ohio.

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period provided by law.

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

MAYOR
PASSED

ATTEST

CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED

CITY CAUNCIL, FINDLAY, OHIO 45840



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-041
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Findlay, State of Ohio, two-thirds (2/3) of
all members elected thereto concurring:

SECTION 1: That the following sums be and the same are hereby appropriated:

FROM: General Fund (insurance proceeds) $ 654.52 .
TO: Police Department #21072000-other $ 654.52

SECTION 2: This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the
inhabitants of the City of Findlay, Ohio, and for the further reason it is immediately
necessary to appropriate funds so that funds received from the City's ‘insurance
company may be utilized.

WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and approval by the Mayor.

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

MAYOR
PASSED

ATTEST

CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED

CITY COUNCIL, FINDLAY, OHIO 45840



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-042
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Findlay, State of
Ohio.

SECTION 1: That the following sums be and the same are hereby appropriated:

FROM: USCM Childhood Obesity Prevention Grant $ 100,000.00
TO: Keep Active . . . Keep Healthy Program #31993600-other $ 100,000.00

SECTION 2: This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the
inhabitants of the City of Findlay, Ohio, and for the further reason it is immediately
necessary to appropriate said funds so that contributions received from the U.S.
Conference of Mayors may be utilized,

WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and approval by the Mayor.

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

PASSED

ATTEST

CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED

CITY COUNCIL, FINDLAY, OHIO 45840



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-043

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING AND TRANSFERRING FUNDS AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Findlay, State of Ohio, two-thirds (2/3) of
all members elected thereto concurring:

SECTION 1: That the following sums be and the same are hereby appropriated and
transferred:

FROM: CIT Fund — Capital Improvements $ 4,000.00
Restricted Account

TO: Howard Run Ditch Cleaning Project No. 32549500 $ 4,000.00

SECTION 2: That the actions of the Mayor be ratified and that she be authorized to pay
the bond amount pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 6131.06 to facilitate the notification
process. Said Funds shall be advanced to the County in accordance with an agreement
to be formalized between the City and County. Two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) was
appropriated to this project tin 2014. Additional funds will be required once assessment
levels are determined.

SECTION 3: This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the
inhabitants of the City of Findlay, Ohio, and for the further reason it is immediately
necessary to appropriate and transfer said funds so that the City’s portion of the
construction costs may be paid. Whereby the County will return any and all unused
funds to the City.

WHEREFORE, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and approval by the Mayor.

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

PASSED

ATTEST

CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED

CITY COUNCIL, FINDLAY, OHIO 45840



